
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 10 DECEMBER 2020

A MEETING of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held on Thursday, 10 

DECEMBER 2020 at 10.00 a.m.   The meeting will be conducted by Microsoft Teams live event.  

Arrangements are in place to stream the meeting for public viewing.  Further information and a link 

is provide on the Councils website.

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

3 December 2020

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

AUDIT BUSINESS 

4. Minute. (Pages 3 - 10) 5 mins

Minute of Meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 23 
November 2020    to be approved and signed by the Chairman. (Copy 
attached.)
SCRUTINY BUSINESS 

5. Petitions 60 mins

(a)  Petitions Procedure at Committee (Pages 11 - 
14)

(Copy attached.)
(b)  Coldstream Flags Petition (Pages 15 - 

170)
(i) Stop Scottish Borders Council Removing 

Scottish Flags from Henderson Park, 
Coldstream Petition (Copy attached.)

(ii) Briefing paper by Services Director Assets & 
Infrastructure (Copy attached.)

Public Document Pack



6. Balance between 20mph speed limits and Street Architecture (Pages 
171 - 176)

20 mins

Consider briefing paper.  (Copy attached.)
7. Police Community Action Teams Governance (Pages 177 - 182) 20 mins

Consider report by Executive Director, Finance & Regulatory.  (Copy 
attached) 

8. Any Other Scrutiny Items Previously Circulated. 

9. Any Other Scrutiny Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors S. Bell (Chairman), H. Anderson, J. A. Fullarton, 
J. Greenwell, N. Richards, E. Robson, H. Scott, E. Thornton-Nicol, S. Scott 

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson Tel; 01835 826502 Email: 
fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTE of Meeting of the AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held Via Microsoft 
Teams on Monday, 23 November 2020 at 
10.15 am

Present:- Councillors S. Bell (Chairman), H. Anderson, J. A. Fullarton, J. Greenwell, 
N. Richards, E. Robson, H. Scott, S. Scott, E. Thornton-Nicol; and for Audit 
Business Ms H. Barnett and  Mr M. Middlemiss.

In Attendance:- Executive Director Finance & Regulatory, Executive Director Corporate 
Improvement & Economy (para 8), Chief Officer Audit & Risk, Clerk to the 
Council, Democratic Services Officer (F. Walling); Ms G. Woolman – Audit 
Scotland.

1. MINUTE 
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Meeting held on 22 October 2020.

DECISION
APPROVED for signature by the Chairman.

2. ACTION TRACKER 
There had been circulated copies of the Action Tracker for the Audit and Scrutiny      
Committee.  In reviewing the Action Tracker, the Chief Officer Audit & Risk advised that 
status updates would be circulated to Members by email for the two outstanding actions 
relating to the Annual Assurance Statement 2019/20 to the Scottish Housing Regulator. In 
terms of the action relating to Police Community Action Teams Governance, the Clerk 
confirmed that a report would be brought to the next Audit & Scrutiny meeting on 10 
December 2020.

DECISION
NOTED the Action Tracker

AUDIT BUSINESS

3. MID-TERM TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2020/21 
3.1 There had been circulated copies of a report by the Executive Director Finance & 

Regulatory presenting the mid-year report of treasury management activities for 2020/21 
in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice, including Prudential and 
Treasury Management Indicators, and seeking comments from Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee prior to consideration of the report by Council.  This provided a mid-year report 
on the Council’s treasury activity during the six month period to 30 September 2020 and 
demonstrated that Treasury activity in the first six months of 2020/21 had been 
undertaken in full compliance with the approved Treasury Strategy and Policy for the year. 
Appendix 1 to the report contained an analysis of the performance against the targets set 
in relation to Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators, and proposed revised 
estimates of these indicators in light of the 2019/20 out-turn and experience in 2020/21 to 
date for Council approval.  The Pension & Investments Manager, Kirsty Robb, highlighted 
the main points of the Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing summarised in the 
Appendix to the report.  She referred to the element of slippage in the capital programme 
as a result of COVID-19.  Detailed explanations of the movements within the planned 
expenditure had been reported in the ongoing monitoring reports, the last of which was to 
the Executive Committee on 17 November 2020.  Due to the overall financial position with 
the effect of COVID-19 on the capital programme and the higher than normal cash level 
held, Ms Robb explained that there had been no new external borrowing undertaken so 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



far this year.  It was anticipated that borrowing of £10m would be undertaken during the 
remainder of the financial year.

3.2 The Executive Director Finance & Regulatory and Ms Robb answered Members’ 
questions and gave further detailed information where requested.  In terms of investments 
and opportunities to invest surplus balances in the short term, the Executive Director 
Finance & Regulatory gave assurance that the Council deposited surplus funds only in 
triple A rated institutions and the priorities when looking at money market funds were 
security, liquidity and yield in that order. The Chairman asked a question about the Loan 
Charges estimate contained in the Council’s Financial Plan and whether the interest 
element of the Council’s PFI contracts was included in those Loan Charges. The 
Executive Director Finance & Regulatory explained that accounting for PFI was 
undertaken separately and under different regulations controlled nationally.  Ms Robb 
offered to provide clarification to the Chairman of how the estimated loan charges figure of 
£19.111m was calculated.  In terms of the PFI contracts the interest rate was fixed for the 
life of the 25 year contract.  There was a facility for re-financing but this was the 
responsibility of the contractor, with the Council being entitled to a share of any 
subsequent re-financing gain. The Chairman suggested that it would be helpful to have a 
paper presented at the next Audit Committee meeting with a summary of the facts relating 
to the financial elements of the PFI contracts and to explore any opportunities to make 
national representations through COSLA to change the regulations. 

DECISION
AGREED:-

(a) to note that treasury management activity in the six months to 30 September 
2020 was carried out in compliance with the approved Treasury Management 
Strategy and Policy; and

(b) that the Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2020/21, as contained in 
Appendix I to the report, be presented to Council for approval of the revised 
indicators; and

(c) to request the Executive Director Finance & Regulatory bring a briefing 
paper on the financial elements of PFI contracts, including any changes 
being sought on the national regulations.

4. INTERNAL AUDIT MID-TERM PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020/21 
4.1 With reference to paragraph 7 of the Minute of 9 March 2020, there had been circulated 

copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit & Risk to inform of the progress Internal Audit 
had made, in the first 6 months of the year to 30 September 2020, towards completing the 
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020/21.  It also summarised the statutory obligations for 
Internal Audit and requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
The Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020/21 that was approved by the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee on 9 March 2020, set out the audit coverage for the year utilising available 
Internal Audit staff resources to enable the Chief Officer Audit and Risk (the Council’s 
Chief Audit Executive (CAE)), to provide the statutory annual Internal Audit opinion 
regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control within the Council.  Internal 
Audit assurance services and annual opinions were also provided to the Scottish Borders 
Pension Fund Board and Committee, and the Scottish Borders Health and Social Care 
Integration Joint Board to meet their obligations.  Appendix 1 to the report provided details 
of the half-yearly progress by Internal Audit with the delivery of its programme of work.  
Internal Audit had made good progress in the first half of the year, despite the COVID-19 
pandemic response, though amendments to the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 required 
approval by the Committee.  At the 23 June 2020 meeting, the Chief Officer Audit & Risk 
had advised members that, due to the effects of the COVID-19 emergency response, the 
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020/21 had been re-assessed in terms of potential changes 
i.e. add audits to cover new risks, re-schedule medium risk audits to later in the current 

Page 4



year, and defer low risk cyclical audits to a future year.  The report listed the proposed 
Audits to be deferred to 2021/22.The revised Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020/21 
(Appendix 1) was now being presented for approval.  

4.2 The Chief Officer Audit & Risk, Jill Stacey, answered Members’ questions and provided 
more information, in particular about any implications of the audits being deferred.  Ms 
Stacey accepted it was unusual to have a significant change in the audit plan but she was 
aware that many other Local Authorities were in a similar position.  She assured Members 
that this was a risk-based Internal Audit Plan and in each case, there had been good 
engagement with Management about the deferral.  In some of the services concerned 
deferral of the audit aligned with strategies relating to the FF24 programme.  She agreed 
that the deferrals may put pressure on capacity to carry out audits in 2021/22 although 
some of the scheduled audits were cyclical rather than risk based.  Although some work 
may have to be realigned she did not expect there to be a significant impact.   

DECISION
AGREED to note the progress Internal Audit had made towards completing the 
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020/21, to confirm that it was satisfied with the 
Performance of the Internal Audit service, and to approve the revisions to the 
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020/21.

5. PROGRESS ON IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
5.1 With reference to paragraph 6 of the Minute of 25 November 2019, there had been 

circulated copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit & Risk providing an update to 
members of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee on the status of the implementation by 
Management of audit recommendations made and agreed in Internal Audit reports during 
2019/20 and previous years.  A table within the report highlighted the current status of 
Internal Audit recommendations from current and previous years and further details on 
those recommendations not yet fully implemented were shown in Appendix 1 to the 
report.  In light of the Management resources deployed to the Covid-19 emergency 
response, the Chief Officer Audit & Risk in April 2020 agreed to an automatic 3-month 
extension to the due dates of all open Audit recommendations in the Pentana Risk 
system. In response to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee decision “Requested that the 
Corporate Management Team determined an escalation process to address those 
Internal Audit recommendations not completed within the agreed timescale”, two quarterly 
update reports on Internal Audit recommendations had been presented to the Corporate 
Management Team on 22 July 2020 and on 21 October 2020, to enhance Management 
monitoring and oversight of progress.  Corporate Management Team had drawn attention 
to the requirement for Internal Audit recommendations to be more routinely cited in 
Departmental Management Team meetings as part of the monitoring process. 

5.2 Members asked questions about particular outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations 
as listed in Appendix 1 to the report, expressing concern about the length of time some 
were overdue.  With regard to the recommendation relating to the delayed Digital 
Customer Access Programme, Mr Robertson explained that the project had been subject 
to revision due to the system having to be redesigned.  Testing on that was now being 
finalised and business intelligence work nearing completion.  Members requested that the 
senior managers involved in that programme be asked to attend the next Audit & Scrutiny 
Committee (Audit business) meeting to provide further information.  After Members had 
received detailed answers to questions about several other actions, there was a general 
discussion about the way in which the information was presented within the report and 
Appendix.  Members asked for more clarity within the narrative, confirmation that the older 
actions were still relevant, and an indication in the report of which outstanding actions 
represented a significant level of risk.  

DECISION
AGREED:-

Page 5



(a)       to acknowledge the progress made by Management in implementing Internal 
Audit recommendations to improve internal controls and governance, and 
mitigate risks;

(b)   that further action was still required by Management to implement those 
outstanding Internal Audit recommendations;

(c) to note that Internal Audit would continue to monitor for completion of the 
outstanding recommendations and would provide update reports to the 
Audit & Scrutiny Committee.   

(d) to request that the senior managers implementing the Digital Customer 
Access programme attend the next meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny 
Committee (Audit business) to provide further information.

6. INTERNAL AUDIT WORK TO OCTOBER 2020 
With reference to paragraph 9 of the Minute of 22 October 2020, there had been 
circulated copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit & Risk providing details of the 
recent work carried out by Internal Audit and the recommended Audit actions agreed by 
Management to improve internal controls and governance arrangements.  The work 
Internal Audit had carried out in the period from 1 to 31 October 2020 associated with the 
delivery of the approved Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020/21 was detailed in this report.  
During this period a total of 3 Final Internal Audit Reports had been issued, on the 
following subjects: Treasury Management; EU Funded Programmes LEADER and EMFF; 
and Community Equipment Service.  There were no recommendations made, with a 
category of comprehensive assurance given to the audit of Treasury Management and 
substantial assurance given to the other two audits.   An Executive Summary of the final 
Internal Audit reports issued, including audit objective, findings, good practice, 
recommendations (where appropriate) and the Chief Officer Audit and Risk’s independent 
and objective opinion on the adequacy of the control environment and governance 
arrangements within each audit area, was shown in Appendix 1 to the report.  Also 
included in the report was a summary of current Audit Assurance work in progress.  In a 
discussion of the report Members asked for further information about the Community 
Equipment Service audit, referring in particular to the previous and outstanding 
recommendation relating to the signature of the Service Level Agreement (SLA) regarding 
the funding package for this service to ensure its financial sustainability. Mr Robertson 
confirmed that the service sought to recycle and re-use all equipment within the store and 
that although the agreement was for a 50:50 funding split between the Council and NHS 
Borders the SLA was with NHS Borders and was still to be signed.  At the request of the 
Committee, Mr Robertson agreed to write to the Chief Executive of NHS Borders to 
encourage the SLA to be signed-off at the earliest opportunity.  

DECISION
AGREED to:-

(a)     note the final assurance reports issued in the period from 1 to 31 October 
2020 associated with the delivery of the approved Internal Audit Annual Plan 
2019/20;

(b) note the Internal Audit Assurance work in progress and Internal Audit 
Consultancy and other work carried out in accordance with the approved 
Internal Audit Charter; 

(c)     acknowledge the assurance provided on internal controls and governance 
arrangements in place for the areas covered by this Internal Audit work; and

Page 6



(d) request that the Executive Director Finance & Regulatory write to the Chief 
Executive NHS Borders to encourage sign-off at the earliest opportunity of 
the SLA relating to the Community Equipment Service.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT IN SERVICES 
7.1 The Executive Director Corporate Improvement & Economy, Rob Dickson, was in 

attendance to give a presentation on the strategic risks facing the service and the internal 
controls and governance in place to manage/mitigate those risks, to demonstrate how risk 
management was embedded within services.  With the aid of slides, which included a 
description, detailed assessment, internal controls and scoring for each risk area, Mr 
Dickson firstly gave a summary of five Corporate Risks which he managed for the 
Corporate Management Team.  The five Corporate Risks were: Contract Monitoring, now 
incorporating Live Borders, SB Contracts and CGI; External Events; Major Incidents; 
Political Instability; and Climate Change.  In terms of Climate Change, Mr Dickson 
explained that this was work in progress with the recent formation of the Sustainable 
Development Committee and associated reports to Council.  Work was being undertaken 
to update the risk with new Risk Factors, Consequences, Internal Controls and Linked 
Actions.  Once this work was completed, a Risk Score and Target Risk could be decided. 
In time, Climate Change would have its own Risk Register.  Mr Dickson moved on to refer 
to the Service Risk Registers he oversaw: Planning, Development & Building Standards; 
Emergency Planning; and Economic Development.  Mr Dickson referred in particular to 
Emergency Planning and the pressure the service had been under over the past 12 
months, with the Peebles High School fire, major flooding events and the COVID-19 
outbreak.  The presentation concluded with reference to three additional Risk Registers 
relating to Live Borders; Tweedbank Programme Board; and SBC Brexit.   

7.2 In a discussion of the presentation, a question was asked as to whether there was a risk 
in relation to the capacity of Directors to provide what had often been 24-hour cover in 
relation to the management of major incidents and recent events.   Mr Dickson explained 
that, whilst it used to be the case that just the Chief Executive and Executive Director 
Corporate Improvement & Economy shared the responsibility for management of 
emergency events, a range of senior colleagues were now involved and were being given 
formal training.  Members recognised the importance of good communications and use of 
media particularly in relation to emergency events.  As the press were often keen to have 
comments from elected Members on these occasions, a question was asked about 
training Members on media engagement.  The Clerk confirmed that specific media 
training had been provided within this term of office to Members with particular areas of 
responsibility, but this could be revisited. The Chairman thanked Mr Dickson for his 
presentation and it was noted that the slides would be circulated to Members for their 
information. 

DECISION
NOTED the presentation

MEMBERS
Ms H. Barnett and Mr M Middlemiss left the meeting.

SCRUTINY BUSINESS

8. SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 
With reference to paragraph 10 of the meeting of 10 February 2020, and after discussion 
with the Chairman, there had been circulated copies of an updated version of the 
previously agreed Scrutiny Work Programme.  The Clerk provided further information in 
response to questions about certain hearings.

DECISION
NOTED the dates for hearings for the Scrutiny Work Programme.

Page 7



The meeting concluded at 12.30 pm  

Page 8



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

ACTION SHEET MASTER COPY

AUDIT and SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 2020/21 
Notes:- 
1. Paragraphs Marked with a * require full Council approval before action can be taken
2. Items for which no actions are required are not included

TITLE DECISION REQUIRING ACTION DIRECTORATE/ 
SECTION

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER

STATUS

28 September 2020

Best Value Action 
Plan 

The Chairman commented that the detail of progress had been 
reassuring but it would be helpful to have such information in 
advance of the meeting to give Members the opportunity to 
understand and consider what questions they may wish to ask.  It 
had been useful to see the total of actions but for the quarterly 
reviews going forward, the focus would be on exceptions rather 
than all actions.  

Transformation 
& Performance

Jason McDonald Next quarterly update of BV 
Action Plan scheduled for 
presentation on 8 February 
2021.

Audit Scotland 
Counter Fraud 
Reports

Request that the Corporate Fraud Steering Group (Integrity 
Group) of officers consider all three reports as part of their 
counter fraud role and responsibilities, and carry out an 
assessment of counter fraud controls associated with the covid-
19-emerging-fraud-risks and report back to the Committee on 
findings and necessary actions at the earliest opportunity.

Audit & Risk Jill Stacey Initiated at the meeting of the 
Corporate Fraud Steering 
Group (Integrity Group) on 30 
October 2020.
Report scheduled for 
presentation on 8 February 
2021.

22 October 2020

It was requested and noted that future reports would contain 
more detail with regard to actions taken.  A private Members’ 
briefing would also be arranged to update Ward Councillors on 
progress with the occupancy agreement for Tweedside Park 
residents.

Customer & 
Communities

Jenni Craig In hand.Annual Assurance 
Statement 2019/20 
to the Scottish 
Housing Regulator

Approve the Annual Assurance Statement 2019/20 for submission 
to the Scottish Housing Regulator.   

Customer & 
Communities

Jenni Craig Submitted along with the 
‘Summary Statement of Self-
Assessment of Compliance 
against Regulatory 
Framework’ to the Scottish 
Housing Regulator via the 
Landlord Portal on 26 
November 2020.
Complete.

P
age 9



Police Community 
Action Teams 
Governance

AGREED that officers bring back a report with details on 
enhancing reporting to Executive Committee and investigating a 
mechanism for improving communication between the Oversight 
Group and Police, Fire and Rescue and Safer Communities 
Board.

Clerk to the 
Council

Jenny Wilkinson Scheduled for presentation to 
A&SC (Scrutiny business) 
meeting on 10 December 
2020.

23 November 2020

Treasury 
Management Mid-
Year Report 2020/21

AGREED to request the Executive Director Finance & Regulatory 
bring a briefing paper on the financial elements of PFI contracts, 
including any changes being sought on the national regulations.

Finance & 
Regulatory 

David Robertson Draft Treasury Management 
Strategy 2021/22 scheduled 
for presentation on 8 
February 2021.

Progress on 
Implementation of 
Internal Audit 
Recommendations

AGREED to request that the senior managers implementing the 
Digital Customer Access programme attend the next meeting of 
the Audit & Scrutiny Committee (Audit business) to provide 
further information.

Customer & 
Communities
Transformation 
& Performance

Jenni Craig
Jason McDonald

Next meeting of Audit & 
Scrutiny Committee (Audit 
business) is on 8 February 
2021.

Internal Audit Work 
to October 2020

AGREED to request that the Executive Director Finance & 
Regulatory write to the Chief Executive NHS Borders to 
encourage sign-off at the earliest opportunity of the SLA relating 
to the Community Equipment Service.

Finance & 
Regulatory 

David Robertson In hand.

P
age 10



1

Scottish Borders Council
Audit & Scrutiny Committee Petitions Procedure

Part of the remit of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee is to consider petitions 
submitted to the Council in accordance with the Council’s approved petitions 
procedure, outlined below, and to determine the appropriate action to be taken 
within the terms of the procedure.

Petitions

1. Petitions should raise issues which relate to matters within the 
responsibility of Scottish Borders Council or the general well-being of the 
residents of the Scottish Borders.  Petitioners should be able to 
demonstrate that there is a public interest in the issue that they are 
raising.

2. A petition should be on a standard form, titled and should include a clear 
statement (no more than 250 words) which covers the main subject.  Any 
further information, for example, about measures already taken or 
approaches made to other bodies, should be included but limited to no 
more than 4 sides of A4 paper.  

3. Petitions should be accompanied by at least 10 signatures in total, from 
persons aged 16 and over, resident in the Scottish Borders.  The 
signatures must be from a minimum of 3 separate addresses.  The 
principal petitioner should be on the Register of Electors for the Scottish 
Borders Council area.    

4.    Petitions from local businesses shall be accepted where there is support 
from at least 5 businesses on the Valuation Roll for Scottish Borders 
Council. 

5. Elected Members may not be a signatory on a petition and no petition will 
be accepted from a political party.

6.    Where there are already regulatory procedures in place or the matter 
relates to individuals, then it would not be appropriate to accept such 
petitions, therefore petitions shall not be accepted:

(i) about planning, licensing, or other matters where there are already 
regulatory procedures in place;

(ii) about personal or business issues; 

(iii) about commercially sensitive or confidential material;

Page 11

Agenda Item 5a



2

(iv) about individual Councillors, members of Council staff, or other 
individuals who may easily be identified; 

(v) about employees’ terms and conditions of employment;

(vi) about information which is protected by an interdict or court order:

(vii) about an allegation that someone has broken the law; 

(viii)which contain language which is defamatory, offensive, provocative or 
otherwise inappropriate; 

(ix) which relate to a complaint or grievance (which should be handled 
through the Council’s complaints procedure); 

(x) which relate to a decision made by the Council or a committee during 
the preceding six months; and

(xi) which are identical or similar to other petitions made within the 
preceding twelve months.

7. The Clerk to the Council, or her representative, shall ensure petitions keep 
to procedures and are admissible.  All valid petitions, with accompanying 
information if any, shall be passed to the next scheduled meeting of the 
Audit & Scrutiny Committee.  Petitions which are the same, or 
substantially similar, shall be considered together.  

8. A summary report shall be prepared for the Committee by the Clerk to the 
Council about any petitions received during the period that are considered 
inadmissible for any of the reasons listed in paragraph 6 above.  The 
Committee will make the final decision as to whether these are valid.

Meetings of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee

9. When hearing a petition the relevant Director(s), Executive Member(s) and 
Community Planning Partner representative(s) shall be invited to attend 
the meeting to provide further information, as appropriate.  

10. The principal petitioner should indicate on the form whether or not he/she, 
or a named deputy, wish to have the opportunity to make a statement at 
the meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee where their petition is 
being considered.  It would be normal practice to allow the principal 
petitioner or a deputy to speak, but this is at the discretion of the 
Chairman of the Committee.  

11. No deputation to the Meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee shall 
exceed 10 in number and, at the discretion of the Chairman, only one 
speaker shall be heard by the Committee.  The time allowed to present the 
petition shall not exceed 10 minutes, except at the discretion of the 
Chairman.  The speaker should also be prepared to answer questions.

Page 12



3

12. Notice of petitions scheduled to be considered by the Audit & Scrutiny 
Committee will be through the usual on-line public access facility to 
committee papers, with a link from the petitions “page” on the Council 
website.  Those signing petitions should be made aware that the detail of 
the petition, with their name and address (but not signature), will be 
published on the Council website as part of the agenda pack for the 
meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee.

13. For the moment, no “e-petitions” will be facilitated, or comments from the 
public accepted on petitions scheduled for consideration by the Audit & 
Scrutiny  Committee.

14. The procedure at the meeting, for each petition considered, shall be as 
follows:

(i) the meeting shall be in public unless the subject matter of the petition 
would be deemed to be confidential under the terms of Section 7A of 
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973;

(ii) the principal petitioner, or named deputy, shall give a statement in 
explanation of the petition;

(iii) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask 
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;

(iv) there will be an opportunity for any Director(s), Executive Member(s) 
and Community Planning Partner representative(s) present to ask 
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;

(v) a response to the petition may be heard from a Director, Executive 
Member and/or Community Planning Partner representative present 
at the meeting;

(vi) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask 
questions of any Director, Executive Member(s) and Community 
Planning Partner representative(s) present at the meeting;

(vii) there will be an opportunity for the petitioner or their named deputy 
to ask questions of any Elected Member, Director or Community 
Planning Partner representative present at the meeting; 

(viii)Members of the Committee shall then discuss the information 
available and consider their findings.  The Committee may defer a 
decision should further information be required. 

Note:  any contribution on behalf of the petition from a second or other 
speaker(s) shall be at the discretion of the Chairman.  The public will not 
be allowed to speak at the meeting unless invited to do so by the 
Chairman.

15. The Audit & Scrutiny Committee shall agree to one of the following:-

Page 13



4

(i) refer the petition to another Committee or Director, with or without a 
recommendation or comment.  That Committee or Director shall then 
make the final decision which could include taking no further action; 

(ii) refer the petition to the relevant Community Planning Partner, with or 
without a recommendation or comment, if appropriate; 

(iii) that the issue(s) raised do not merit or do not require further action. 

16. The decision of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee, and any reason for that 
decision, shall be recorded in the Minute of the Meeting and a copy of the 
Minute shall be sent to the principal petitioner by Democratic Services 
staff.  Where the petition is referred to a Director or another body, the 
responsibility for communicating the final outcome of the petition is also 
referred.  Updates on these outcomes will be provided to the Audit & 
Scrutiny Committee.  

17. There will be no right of appeal in response to a final decision made in 
response to a petition.

18. The usage and effectiveness of the petitions procedure shall be reviewed 
on an annual basis.

 

Page 14



Page 15

Agenda Item 5b



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



The flags were first put up in Henderson Park in 2014 following a request from Scottish 
Borders Council to the Community Council to dress up the park and add some colour to 
mark the Commonwealth Games being held in Scotland and the baton being carried through 
the town by Olympic athletes. The chairman of the Community Council asked David 
Shepherd to do this as he is a very respected local signwriter with experience in creating 
displays that comply with all health and safety legislation and make the town more attractive 
(e.g. the Coldstream sign on the ground at the end of Guard’s Road in the town). 
Since then the flags have been up each year at Henderson Park to mark the town’s Civic 
Week (first full week in August) and remain up until after the anniversary of Flodden Day on 
9th September.  
 
This year a message was given to David on 7th September (copies available if required) that 
“a complaint” was “received about a saltire flag flying on Council property”and that the flags 
should be removed immediately. Despite requests, no reason was given at this point in this 
email exchange as to the nature of the complaint and the flags were removed on 7th 
September (and therefore were not flying on Flodden Day for the first time since 2014). 
 
Scottish Borders Council have since gone on record in an FOI request that there was no 
complaint, merely an enquiry and that the “flags were erected/attached to Council property 
with no prior permission”. 
 
The FOI response continues:- 
“Whilst these may have been erected in this location in previous years to mark Coldstream 
Civic Week, this year they have remained in place for over a month.” …”This decision was 
taken by officers and is solely related to these items being on Council property and is in no 
way related to the type of flag flown”. 
 
In the 1990s the tourist information service was moved out of the town but Scottish Borders 
Council were at pains to assure the town that Coldstream would be promoted strongly as a 
Gateway town but none of that happened. We have a Gateway Centre but that was brought 
about by local individuals. It is sad that Scotland’s “first true border toon” has very little to 
attract the kind of tourists who were happily having their photos taken next to the flags even 
as David was taking them down. 
 
From research online it is clear that the Council has a protocol for “the flying of flags from 
Council buildings” which (from the Equality Impact Assessment on line) seems to have been 
updated last in April 2016. The document suggests that it is reviewed every two years so 
perhaps a review now might allow the arrangement for flags to be flown at Henderson Park 
between Civic Week and Flodden Day to be formalised? 
 
The decision making on flag flying appears to be reserved to the Convenor per the protocol 
itself and we would like to know his involvement in this complaint/ enquiry if any. 
 
Interestingly the Equality Impact Assessment prepared re the Flag Protocol talks about “the 
many benefits that help Scottish Borders Council contribute well to it’s (sic) obligations under 
the Equality Act. Examples include:  (my highlighting) 

Page 161



… 
● Ensures Scottish Borders Council demonstrates dignity and respect for the 

tradition of flag flying within the United Kingdom ... 
● Encourages flag flying which allows Scottish Borders Council to promote 

positive messages including pride, inclusiveness, respect and celebration 
 
We would like to understand why this year the people of Coldstream were not allowed to 
have the flags flying on the anniversary of the Battle of Flodden in 1513, why a complaint is 
suddenly not a complaint any more and whether the council would like to work with the 
community to formalise what it had previously accepted as the norm (and in actual fact itself 
commissioned in 2014). 
 

Page 162



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

FLAG FLYING IN HENDERSON PARK, COLDSTREAM 

Briefing paper by Service Director, Assets & Infrastructure

AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

10 December 2020

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report summarises the content and context of a petition 
received by the Council for the Audit & Scrutiny Committee.  

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 A Petition entitled “Stop Scottish Borders Council removing Scottish Flags 
from Henderson Park in Coldstream” was received by the Clerk to the 
Council on 21 September 2020.  Accompanying the petition, as a further 
petition on Change.org with over 3,000 signatures, c.375 being residents in 
the Scottish Borders.   In the supporting statement submitted with the 
petition it states “it is entirely appropriate that Scottish flags should fly 
proudly in Henderson Park.”  A further document, called “Flag gate” was 
also submitted (see Appendix 1).  

2.2 In September 2020 Scottish Borders Council received an enquiry about flags 
flying at Henderson Park, Coldstream.  Following a review, officers from the 
Parks and Environment team found that the flags had been installed by 
Presenting Coldstream but were unable to establish that the correct 
permissions had been obtained from the Council to fly the flags.  
Subsequently officers contacted Presenting Coldstream and requested that 
the flags be removed, which was carried out in a timely manner.

2.3 The “Flag gate” document introduced additional background information on 
the flying of flags at Henderson Park, dating back to 2014 and the 
celebrations associated with the Commonwealth Games of that year.  It set 
out that since that date the flags had been erected to coincide with Civic 
week (first full week of August) and they stayed in place until Flodden day 
9th September. 

2.4 “Flag gate” also sets out the following:- 
We would like to understand why this year the people of Coldstream were not 
allowed to have the flags flying on the anniversary of the Battle of Flodden in 
1513, why a complaint is suddenly not a complaint any more and whether 
the council would like to work with the community to formalise what it had 

Page 163



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

previously accepted as the norm (and in actual fact itself commissioned in 
2014).

3 COUNCIL PROCESSES AND PERMISSIONS

3.1 Flag Flying Protocol - The flying of flags is covered by a Protocol set out 
in the document “The flying of flags from Council buildings And 
Arrangements for books of Condolence” (see Appendix 2). This sets out 
prescribed locations/procedures for flag flying, and the due process for 
discretionary decision making regarding flying of flags out-with these 
prescribed locations/procedures:-

“From time to time decisions in relation to a particular set of circumstances 
will require to be taken. In such instances the Convener (whom failing the 
Vice Convener) will make the decision after consulting the Chief Executive, 
his/her deputy or the Property Manager and if appropriate the Lord 
Lieutenants and the Lord Chamberlain’s office.”

3.2 Upon review, Officers did not find any prior permission had been sought 
under these discretionary powers and the Convenor / Chief Executive had 
not been consulted on the flying of flags at Henderson Park. Similarly, no 
approach had been made to the Estates Management Team as referred to 
at paragraph 3.5 below.  

3.3 While the protocol “The flying of flags from Council buildings And 
Arrangements for books of Condolence” does contain the above 
discretionary decision making, it does not explicitly state the criteria for 
such exceptions or the procedure for communities and third parties to make 
such discretionary requests.  It also does not make clear any procedure for 
the removal of unauthorised flags.  It is recognised that a review of the Flag 
Flying Protocol is required to provide greater clarity and avoid 
misunderstandings arising in future.

3.4 Park Bookings Process - Third party use of public open spaces for 
community based activities is supported by the Council, but prior agreement 
should be sought using the Park Bookings Process.  No such agreement had 
been negotiated regarding the erection of the flags at Henderson Park.

3.5 Use of Council Property - Any access to or use of Council owned property 
by communities and third parties such as private undertakers/utility 
companies, requires that they seek permission for a wayleave or access 
agreement which is typically facilitated through the Councils Estate 
Management team, supported as required by Parks and Environment, Legal 
services and any other appropriate service area.  No such agreement had 
been negotiated regarding the erection of the flags at Henderson Park.

3.6 CV-19 Recovery Board - In response to CV-19 the Council has established 
a Recovery Board as an additional control measure to ensure that the 
services it provides communities are considered in the context of CV-19 and 
are safe. The erection and management of the flags flown at Henderson 
Park were not considered by the Recovery Board.

3.7 Safety Advisory Group - Due to the effects of CV-19, all Civic 
Festivals/Common Ridings this year were cancelled. The Council usually 

Page 164



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

facilitates these through the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) which did not 
take place this year due to the cancellations and other CV19 related 
pressures.

3.8 In accordance with standard practice for unauthorised installations or use of 
council assets, the Flags were requested to be removed by Officers without 
any involvement of the Convenor, the Leader or the Chief Executive.  
However, officers accept that this situation could have been handled 
differently and would offer an apology to Presenting Coldstream.

4 FLAG GATE – FOI REQUEST

4.1 In the correspondence on 7 September 2020 with Presenting Coldstream, 
officers mistakenly described the enquiry regarding the flags as a complaint. 
This was an error. 

4.2 The Councils complaints policy is available on line 
(https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20016/have_your_say/155/make_a_
complaint).  Under the terms of this policy, if an issue is a first time request 
for action, it is classified as an enquiry, as was the case in this instance.

4.3 A Freedom of Information Request (FOI 14546) was received on 7 
September requesting details of “the complaint [about] the Scotland flags in 
Coldstream”.  As there was no official complaint held on record, the 
response to this FOI request stated that there was no complaint. The 
erroneous referral in correspondence with Presenting Coldstream to “a 
complaint” on 7th September was later corrected. It is noted that this may 
have caused some confusion.

5 COMMENTARY ON ISSUES RAISED

5.1 The following table summarises the concerns raised within the petition and 
also the “Flag gate” document and gives comments.

Concerns raised Commentary
Petition - “Scottish Flags 
were put up by an individual 
in Coldstream to cheer us all 
up during the Covid outbreak 
when we should have been 
celebrating our civic week but 
could not. As Coldstream is 
the “first true border toon” it 
is entirely appropriate that 
Scottish Flag should fly 
proudly in Henderson Park 
and tourists and residents 
have been pleased to enjoy 
these flags….. We would like 
the Council to reconsider 
based on wider opinion”

Any third party use of a Council Public Open 
space is facilitated as set out in section 3. 
Organisers can seek permission(s) to carry 
out their activities using these processes at 
any time and would be given support and 
guidance throughout. Any caveats the Council 
may wish to be observed would be advised 
and the third party use can then proceed as 
agreed.

Civic celebrations are co-ordinated through the 
Safety Advisory Group (SAG); due to CV19 this 
year all civic events were cancelled and the 
SAG did not operate.

Flag Gate - Flag gate 
identifies that the Council has 
a flag flying protocol and 

As no application for use had been received 
then no consideration was given to the flag 
flying protocol. Officers did not approach the 

Page 165

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20016/have_your_say/155/make_a_complaint
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20016/have_your_say/155/make_a_complaint


Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

seeks to clarify if the Council 
Convener was involved in the 
complaint/enquiry.

Council Convener as set out under the 
protocol to seek his consideration of the 
matter. 

Flag Gate - We would like to 
understand why this year the 
people of Coldstream were 
not allowed to have the flags 
flying on the anniversary of 
the Battle of Flodden in 1513. 

Any third party use of a Council Public Open 
space is facilitated as set out in section 3. 
Organisers can seek permission(s) to carry 
out their activities using these processes at 
any time and would be given support and 
guidance throughout. Any caveats the Council 
may wish to be observed would be advised 
and the third party use can then proceed as 
agreed.

Civic celebrations are co-ordinated through 
the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) due to CV19 
this year all civic events were cancelled and 
the SAG did not operate.

Flag Gate - why a complaint 
is suddenly not a complaint 
any more

The following is an excerpt from the Council’s 
internet which clarifies what is a complaint, 
and when a complaint is in fact an enquiry. 
Details of this policy are below:-
Is your issue a complaint?
Is the issue you want to raise:

 a routine first time request for a service 
like a missed bin?

 a first time reporting of a fault like a 
pothole or a broken street light?

 a request for compensation only 
like insurance or third party claim?

 issues that are in court or have already 
been heard by a court or a tribunal?

 a disagreement with a decision where a 
statutory right of appeal exists, for 
example in relation to council tax or 
planning?

If the issue you want to raise is one of the 
above, please report it online as we would not 
treat these issues as complaints.”

Flag Gate - whether the 
council would like to work 
with the community to 
formalise what it had 
previously accepted as the 
norm (and in actual fact itself 
commissioned in 2014).

Any third party use of a Council Public Open 
space is facilitated as set out in section 3. 
Organisers can seek permission(s) to carry 
out their activities using these processes at 
any time and would be given support and 
guidance throughout. Any caveats the Council 
may wish to be observed would be advised 
and the third party use can then proceed as 
agreed. 

Page 166

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/report


Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

Civic celebrations are co-ordinated through 
the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) due to CV19 
this year all civic events were cancelled and 
the SAG did not operate.

The Council will continue to work with 
communities to help them achieve their 
aspirations in regards to civic festivals and 
events.

  

Approved by

John Curry Signature ……………………………………..
Service Director, Assets & Infrastructure

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Craig Blackie Parks and Environment Manager

Background Papers:  None
Previous Minute Reference:  N/A

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Capital and Investment Team can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Craig Blackie, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, TD6 0SA.  
Tel:  01835 824000 ext 8036  Email: cblackie@scotborders.gov.uk 

Page 167

mailto:cblackie@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



The flags were first put up in Henderson Park in 2014 following a request from Scottish 
Borders Council to the Community Council to dress up the park and add some colour to 
mark the Commonwealth Games being held in Scotland and the baton being carried through 
the town by Olympic athletes. The chairman of the Community Council asked David 
Shepherd to do this as he is a very respected local signwriter with experience in creating 
displays that comply with all health and safety legislation and make the town more attractive 
(e.g. the Coldstream sign on the ground at the end of Guard’s Road in the town). 
Since then the flags have been up each year at Henderson Park to mark the town’s Civic 
Week (first full week in August) and remain up until after the anniversary of Flodden Day on 
9th September.  
 
This year a message was given to David on 7th September (copies available if required) that 
“a complaint” was “received about a saltire flag flying on Council property”and that the flags 
should be removed immediately. Despite requests, no reason was given at this point in this 
email exchange as to the nature of the complaint and the flags were removed on 7th 
September (and therefore were not flying on Flodden Day for the first time since 2014). 
 
Scottish Borders Council have since gone on record in an FOI request that there was no 
complaint, merely an enquiry and that the “flags were erected/attached to Council property 
with no prior permission”. 
 
The FOI response continues:- 
“Whilst these may have been erected in this location in previous years to mark Coldstream 
Civic Week, this year they have remained in place for over a month.” …”This decision was 
taken by officers and is solely related to these items being on Council property and is in no 
way related to the type of flag flown”. 
 
In the 1990s the tourist information service was moved out of the town but Scottish Borders 
Council were at pains to assure the town that Coldstream would be promoted strongly as a 
Gateway town but none of that happened. We have a Gateway Centre but that was brought 
about by local individuals. It is sad that Scotland’s “first true border toon” has very little to 
attract the kind of tourists who were happily having their photos taken next to the flags even 
as David was taking them down. 
 
From research online it is clear that the Council has a protocol for “the flying of flags from 
Council buildings” which (from the Equality Impact Assessment on line) seems to have been 
updated last in April 2016. The document suggests that it is reviewed every two years so 
perhaps a review now might allow the arrangement for flags to be flown at Henderson Park 
between Civic Week and Flodden Day to be formalised? 
 
The decision making on flag flying appears to be reserved to the Convenor per the protocol 
itself and we would like to know his involvement in this complaint/ enquiry if any. 
 
Interestingly the Equality Impact Assessment prepared re the Flag Protocol talks about “the 
many benefits that help Scottish Borders Council contribute well to it’s (sic) obligations under 
the Equality Act. Examples include:  (my highlighting) 

Page 169



… 
● Ensures Scottish Borders Council demonstrates dignity and respect for the 

tradition of flag flying within the United Kingdom ... 
● Encourages flag flying which allows Scottish Borders Council to promote 

positive messages including pride, inclusiveness, respect and celebration 
 
We would like to understand why this year the people of Coldstream were not allowed to 
have the flags flying on the anniversary of the Battle of Flodden in 1513, why a complaint is 
suddenly not a complaint any more and whether the council would like to work with the 
community to formalise what it had previously accepted as the norm (and in actual fact itself 
commissioned in 2014). 
 

Page 170



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

Balance between 20mph speed limits and Street 
Architecture

Briefing Paper by Service Director, Assets & Infrastructure

AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

10 December 2020

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides details to Members on the balance between 
20mph speed limits and the use of street architecture, and an 
update on the 20mph experiment across settlements in the Scottish 
Borders.    

2 STREET ARCHITECTURE AND TRAFFIC CALMING OPTIONS

2.1 There are a variety of traffic calming features available for construction.  
However, research into the efficacy of these in general is very dated, and in 
rural settings, is extremely rare.  Examples in Appendix 1.  The most 
commonly used traffic calming features are:

 Signing
 Lining and Surface Treatments
 Humps and Bumps
 Variable Message Signs
 Islands, Chicanes, Build Outs
 Protected Parking and Realigning
 Light Controlled Crossings
 Roundabouts
 Gateway Treatments and Transition Buffers
 Shared Spaces (moratorium at present)

2.2 Each traffic calming feature comes with its own advantages and 
disadvantages and some work in tandem better with others.  Costs vary 
depending on the interventions and some have ongoing maintenance 
issues.  Others can cause problems on bus routes and emergency access 
roads and noise and vibration are frequently cited as intolerable by 
residents.  It is rare for an individual traffic calming feature to be successful 
in the longer term, and it is generally accepted that a mix and match of 
features is the most appropriate.  Also worth bearing in mind is that some 
traffic calming features have a very localised effect, and consideration is 
needed into possible adverse effects elsewhere and unintended 
consequences.

Page 171

Agenda Item 6



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

2.3 Eddleston Study
It is fair to say that there is a distinct lack of modern research into the 
effectiveness or otherwise of traffic calming features in rural areas and in 
particular on villages bounded by national speed limit roads.  The Council’s 
traffic and road safety team successfully applied to the Transport Scotland 
Road Safety Research fund for ‘The Eddleston Study’ into traffic calming 
features.  This research involved Edinburgh Napier University conducting a 
worldwide literature review of the effects of traffic calming as well as an 
analysis of recently introduced local traffic calming features in Eddleston.  
An assessment of the strengths of traffic calming measures is detailed in 
the following table.

Assessment of Strengths of Traffic Calming Interventions:
Intervention measure to reduce speed Strength of 

evidence*
There is little evidence as to the effects of rural 
roundabouts in villages

Weak

Vehicle Activated Signs (VAS) with the speed of travel or 
a message such as ‘Slow Down’ if travelling at a speed 
assessed as high for the speed limit appear to be 
effective at reducing speeds. Decreases of about 6 mph 
resulted for the mean and 85th percentile speeds at 12 
months. VAS, including LED signs were reported to be 
very effective in reducing vehicle speeds at community 
entrances.  

Strong

In-village speed tables and road humps are reported to 
be effective in reducing speeds on the approach to, at 
and at a short distance after the location.

Medium

In-village chicanes are reported to be effective in 
reducing speeds on the approach to, at and at a short 
distance after the location. These may include pavement 
build-outs in reducing the road width.

Medium

The use of centre islands and lane narrowing appeared to 
have a small effect on speed reduction relative to other 
measures

Weak

For pedestrian islands in-village symmetrical, induce 1 m 
lateral shift and be enhanced by post-and-chain barriers 
or barrier bollards and located near to residential 
buildings visible from the carriageway.

Weak

As gateway speed reduction measures rumble strips may 
be effective for reducing high speed entry to the 
settlement.

Weak/ 
Medium

The use buffer or transition zones outside of villages 
through use of Chevron markings (among other 
measures) appears to have a moderate effect on 
reducing entry speeds. 

Weak

The use of Transverse bar markings at entrances to 
villages appears to have a moderate effect on reducing 
village entry speeds.

Weak

Red road markings and on-road speed signing have a 
moderate effect on reducing village entry speeds.

Weak

Centre-line removal in villages can reduce speeds driven 
by up to 2 mph.

Weak

The use of ‘natural traffic calming’ measures – hedges 
and trees – appear to have negligible impact on driver 
speeds.

Weak

The use of coloured road material such as red bricks can 
help to reduce speeds driven, often in combination with 

Weak/Medium

Page 172



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

physical intervention measures at locations such as at 
village gateways and at intersections.
Use of a combination of measures appears to be effective 
at reducing vehicle speeds entering and travelling 
through a low speed limit area within small settlements

Medium

  
2.4 In the context of Eddleston village, where Dragon’s teeth at the speed limit 

change were introduced first, followed by Vehicle Activated Signage (VAS), the 
evidence from this Literature Review is that careful selection of additional traffic 
calming measures may provide a synergetic effect in bringing down motor 
vehicle speeds as they enter and proceed through the village.  Further 
application of traffic calming measures on the approach or at the village 
gateways, plus the potential for further measures in the village itself, would look 
to be the approach needed.  There is a range of options which include, for 
example, installing VAS at or close to each gateway and changes in road surface 
colour, potentially with the 30mph speed limit painted onto the red surfacing. 
The potential for speed tables and chicanes may be limited by proximity of 
residential properties and geometry but may be worth exploring as they were 
both reported as achieving relatively high speed reductions.

3 20MPH EXPERIMENT UPDATE

3.1 At its meeting on 27 August 2020, Council agreed to implement a 
Sustrans/Transport Scotland externally funded £1.2M trial of 20mph across 
all streets in settlements with existing 30mph speed limit in the Scottish 
Borders.  This involved 97 settlements in total, including 8 trunk road 
towns.  The timetable for the work was as follows:

 August 28 2020 – First Traffic Survey (pre/baseline data collection)
 September 3 2020 – First Email issued to all Community Councils
 October 5 2020 - Roll out of trial 20mph schemes across all 89 

settlements with 30mph speed limit, excluding trunk road settlements.
 October 26 2020 - All signing completed in 89 settlements and 

awaiting Transport Scotland permission for remaining 8 settlements 
with trunk routes running through.

 October 30 2020 – Second Email and first Community Council Survey 
sent out to all Community Councils.

 November 16 2020 - Agreement from Transport Scotland for trunk 
route towns starting with Hawick.

 November 16 2020 – Second Traffic Survey (post signing only data 
collection).

3.2 From December 2020 through to February 2021, an analysis of traffic 
surveys and determination of possible traffic calming features will be carried 
out in discussion with Elected Members and Police Scotland.  The timetable 
is then:

 January 2021 – Second Community Council Survey 
 March 2021 – Third Traffic Survey 
 April 2021 - Public consultation; Third Community Council Survey; 

Parent survey
 May 2021 – Fourth Traffic Survey 

3.3 From June to August 2021, further consultation will be carried out with 
Elected Members on options for a recommendation report to Council.  It is 

Page 173



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

anticipated this report will be presented to Council in September 2021.  
Depending on the decision of Council at that time, from October 2021 to 
May 2022, the statutory process will take place to introduce any retained 
20mph schemes, and decommission others.    

3.4 A marketing strategy for the current scheme is ongoing with radio, internet 
and social media updates and advertising.  The Council website FAQ os 
updated regularly to reflect questions from the public.  All primary aged 
children have been issued with high viz vests.  An Evaluation group is being 
set up, consisting of SBC Officers, Edinburgh Napier University academics, 
Sustrans, Transport Scotland, all of whom have confirmed, with 
confirmation awaited from Police Scotland.

3.5 As expected, there has been a mixed reaction to the widespread 
introduction of the 20mph schemes.  Some communities are warmly 
welcoming the trial, while others are unhappy over a lack of consultation at 
the outset.  Some have reservations on the need for all streets to be 
included, and there have been a number of queries over justification, based 
on very few injury accidents and questions of over funding, even though the 
scheme is fully externally funded.  It would appear that some drivers are 
also unsettled over the additional drive time, and conversely some 
pedestrians are happier with the change in driver behaviour.  Some 
residents are finding noise disturbance reduced by slower moving vehicles.  
Early discussions from both local Police Sergeants has not seen a spike in 
complaints over speeding or driver behaviour, with complains over non-
compliance and poor driving similar to locations when 30mph was speed 
limit in place.  Police are not surprised with the level of compliance so far.

Further information:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
918429/ltn-1-07_Traffic-calming-guidance.pdf
http://www.ukroads.org/webfiles/TAL%2011-94%20Traffic%20Calming%20Regulations%20-
%20Scotland.pdf

Approved by

John Curry Signature ……………………………………..
Service Director, Assets & Infrastructure

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Philippa Gilhooly Policy/Road User Manager Tel:  01835 825089

Background Papers:  Eddleston Survey
Previous Minute Reference:  None

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Philippa Gilhooly can also give information 
on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Page 174

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918429/ltn-1-07_Traffic-calming-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918429/ltn-1-07_Traffic-calming-guidance.pdf
http://www.ukroads.org/webfiles/TAL%2011-94%20Traffic%20Calming%20Regulations%20-%20Scotland.pdf
http://www.ukroads.org/webfiles/TAL%2011-94%20Traffic%20Calming%20Regulations%20-%20Scotland.pdf


Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

Contact us at Philippa Gilhooly, Scottish Borders Council, Newtown St Boswells, 
Melrose, TD6 0SA.  Tel: 01835 825089  Email:  pgilhooly@scotborders.gov.uk 

Appendix 1

Gateway with Signing, Lining, Separator Island, Surface Treatment, Rumble 
Strips

Flat Topped Speed Hump as Crossing Point

Build Out to Narrow Road

Page 175

mailto:pgilhooly@scotborders.gov.uk


Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

Protected Parking

Variable Message Sign

Shared Space

Page 176



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

POLICE COMMUNITY ACTION TEAMS GOVERNANCE

Report by Executive Director, Finance & Regulatory 

AUDIT & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

10 December 2020

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides further details of the potential amended 
governance arrangements for the Police Community Action Teams.  

1.2  At its meeting held on 22 October 2020, the Audit & Scrutiny Committee 
requested a further report be brought back with details on enhancing 
transparency and performance monitoring of the Police CATs to the 
Executive Committee and investigating a mechanism for improving 
communications between the Oversight Group and the Police, Fire & Rescue 
and Safer Communities Board.   

1.3 As previously reported, the performance monitoring of the CATs could be 
moved from the CAT Member/Officer Oversight Group and be reported 
through the Executive Committee on a quarterly basis.  This would allow a 
more public view of the work of the CATs.  Reports are published committee 
papers and available on the Council website.

1.4 A workshop could be held for members of the Police, Fire & Rescue, and 
Safer Communities Board to explain the process used to decide on the work 
of the CATs, including when issues are passed to Police Scotland.  This 
would allow members of that Board to gain an insight into the governance 
of the CATs.  It may also be helpful to consider whether the CAT Oversight 
Group and the Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer Communities Board should 
meet informally, in private, once per year to discuss the work of the CATS 
and raise any concerns.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Committee:- 

(a) NOTES that those involved in the current CAT Member/Officer 
Oversight Group consider it to be working effectively, therefore 
it remains the officer view that no changes are required  to the 
governance arrangements.

Page 177

Agenda Item 7



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

(b) CONSIDERS, however, whether to make any recommendations 
to Council on the current Police Community Action Teams 
governance arrangements, potentially:

(i) that the tasking of the Police Community Action Teams 
remains with the CAT Member/Officer Oversight Group; 

(ii) that the performance monitoring of the Police Community 
Action Teams be moved from the CAT Member/Officer 
Oversight Group to the Executive Committee, with 
reporting on a quarterly basis; and

(iii) the Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer Communities Board and 
the CAT Member/Officer Oversight Group meet informally, 
in private, on an annual basis, to discuss the work of the 
Police Community Action Teams.

(c) AGREES to RECOMMEND that a workshop be held for members 
of the Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer Communities Board to 
explain the process of tasking for the Police Community Action 
Teams.

   

Page 178



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 At its meeting on 22 October 2020, the Audit and Scrutiny Committee 
considered a report regarding the possibility of the Policy Community Action 
Team Officer/Member Strategic Oversight Group being included in the 
Scheme of Administration as a formal committee of Council.  Officers 
explained that due to the intelligence information being provided by Police 
Scotland to the CAT Member/Officer Oversight Group it was not possible in 
its current form for the Strategic Oversight Group to be included in the 
Scheme of Administration.  

3.2 While the recommendation in that report was to take no further action, an 
option was given to change the governance structure to allow performance 
management of the CATs to be carried out through the Executive 
Committee, with operational tasking of the CATs carried out by a new 
Member/Officer Reference Group.  Following discussion at the meeting, the 
Committee requested a further report be brought back with details on 
enhancing transparency and performance monitoring to the Executive 
Committee and investigating a mechanism for improving communications 
between the Oversight Group and the Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer 
Communities Board.  A workshop could also be considered if required.  

4 CAT GOVERNANCE 

4.1 Should Members wish to suggest changes to the governance arrangements 
currently in place for the Police CATs, consideration will need to be given to 
how best this can be achieved.  As previously reported, the performance 
monitoring of the CATs could be moved from the CAT Member/Officer 
Oversight Group and be reported through the Executive Committee on a 
quarterly basis.  This would allow a more public view of the work of the 
CATs.  Reports are published committee papers and available on the Council 
website.

4.2 The current Member/Officer Oversight Group would continue to work under 
its current rules to oversee the tasking of the CATs. This would ensure that 
police intelligence information was restricted to that Group.  As currently 
happens, all Elected Members would still be able to feed in any issues within 
their own Wards to the CATs by raising these with members of the 
Oversight Group, the Safer Communities & Community Justice Manager, or 
the CAT Sergeants.           

4.2 A workshop could be held for members of the Police, Fire & Rescue, and 
Safer Communities Board to explain the process used to decide on the work 
of the CATs, including when issues are passed to Police Scotland.  This 
would allow members of that Board to gain an insight into the governance 
of the CATs.  It may also be helpful to consider whether the CAT Oversight 
Group and the Police, Fire & Rescue and Safer Communities Board should 
meet informally, in private, once per year to discuss the work of the CATS.

4.3 As previously advised, it is the view of all that are involved in the process 
that the current arrangements with the Strategic Oversight Group seem to 
be working well and is successful.   

Page 179



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

5 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial 
There are no costs attached to any of the recommendations contained in 
this report.

5.2 Risk and Mitigations
There is a risk that while some Members may feel excluded from 
information being provided to the current Police CATs Strategic Oversight 
Group, there are currently 9 Elected Members on the Group who can give 
assurance to the work of the CATs.  Performance statistics are also provided 
each quarter to the Executive Committee.  

5.3 Integrated Impact Assessment
No IIA has been carried out as it is considered there will be no unlawful 
discrimination, harassment or victimisation, or any impact on equality of 
opportunity for those who do or do not share a characteristic of age, 
disability, gender re-assignment, trans/transgender identity, marriage or 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race groups, religion or belief, 
sex-gender identity, and sexual orientation.  

5.4 Acting Sustainably 
There will be no economic, social or environmental effects arising from the 
recommendations in this report.

5.5 Carbon Management
There are no effects on the Council’s carbon emissions arising from the 
recommendations in this report.

5.6 Rural Proofing
There is no impact on those living in rural areas arising from the 
recommendations in this report.

5.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation
Any changes which are required to the Scheme of Administration will 
require Council approval.

6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The Monitoring Officer/Chief Legal Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, 
the Service Director HR & Communications, and Corporate Communications 
have been consulted and any comments received have been incorporated 
into the final report.  Police Scotland were also consulted.  

Approved by

David Robertson Signature ……………………………………..
Executive Director, Finance & Regulatory

Author(s)

Page 180



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2020 

Name Designation and Contact Number
Jenny Wilkinson Clerk to the Council Tel: 01835 825004

Background Papers:  Scheme of Administration 
Previous Minute Reference:  Audit & Scrutiny Committee, 22 October 2020

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Jenny Wilkinson can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, 
Melrose, TD6 0SA.  Tel:  01835 825004  Email:  jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk 

Page 181

mailto:jjwilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute.
	Item No. 4 - Action Tracker - Audit and Scrutiny Committee - as at November 2020

	5a Petitions Procedure at Committee
	5b Coldstream Flags Petition
	Item No. 5(b)(i) - Petition appendix - Flag gate (002)
	Item No. 5(b)(ii) - Coldstream Flags petition report - final
	Item No. 5(b)(ii) - Coldstream Flags petition report - Appendix 1

	6 Balance between 20mph speed limits and Street Architecture
	7 Police Community Action Teams Governance

